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STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

I WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GRANTING SUMMARY
JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF RESPONDENTS.

II. WHETHER THE APPELLANT’S CAUSES OF ACTION WERE
PRECLUDED BY STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

III.  WHETHER RESPONDENT CITY OF SPARTANBURG POLICE
DEPARTMENT IS ENTITLED TO QUALIFIED IMMUNITY.

IV. WHETHER RESPONDENTS ARE LIABLE FOR ASSAULT AND
' BATTERY, MALICIOUS PROSECUTION, AND VIOLATION OF 42
U.S.C. §1983.

' STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On December 24, 2013, Appellant was shoppirig for some groceriés at Dorman Center
WALMART in Spartanburg, when she decided to get some personal items. She set all the-
mefchandise in her cart, and went to the checkout line. Realizing that she did not bring enough
money for all the items she picked, sh; placed the personal items on the rack beside the cashier
where the lip gloss and chips were situated.

As Appellant was reaching the cashier, Respoﬁdent Officer Porter approached her from
behind and grabbed her left arm. Since she had a birth control implant, she told Respondent
Porter that he was hurting her. Respondent Porter, faking her action as a form of resistance,
threw her on the ground, handcuffed her and took her into the office. While in the office,
Appellant was subjected to a physical search. It was only then that Respondent Officer Porter |
explained to her that she was being accused of shoplifting, and presented to her the personal
items (mascara, powder) which she had placed on the rack only moments before. >The police,
whom Respondent WALMART ;alled to respond to the incident, arrived and took Appellant in
Spartanburg County Jail, where .she was booked and arraigned. She was eventually released.

The shoplifting charges went to trial, where Appellant was found not guilty.
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Appellant was accused, assaulted, forcefully arrested and detained against her will, and
' without warrant, by Respondent Officer Russel Porter. As a result of these wrongful acts,
Appellant sustained physical injuries and mental. By reason of Respondent Porter’s‘ grossly
negligent eonduct, Appellant was deprived of her. Despite having no probable cause,
Resp‘ondents pursued a criminal case against Appellant, which resulted in her acquittal by the
Spartanburg Municipal Court on September 17, 2014.‘

On April ,8’ 2016, Appellant filed a Complaint against Respendents Ofﬁc‘er Russel Porter,
the City of Spartanburg, the Spartanburg Police Department and WALMART Stores Inc.
alleging defamation, false arrest, false imprisonment; assault and battery, malicious pr(')secution
and violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

On‘May 16, 2016, Respondent WALMART filed its Answer and moved to dismiss
alleging that‘t.he Complaint is barred by statute of limitations and lack of eause of action.

i On November 15, 2016, the trial court granted Respondent’s Partial Motion to Dismies
on the causes of action for defamation, false imprisonment, and violation _olf § 1983, leaving the
cause of action for assault and battery pending at the trial court. |

On November 21, 2016, Appellant moved to reconsider the Order, dated November l5, ‘
2016, which the court denied in its Order, dated March 22, 2017. _

On December 8, 2016, Respondents Porter, City of Spartanburg and Spartanburg Police
Department moved for summary judgment, which the court granted in its Order, dated March 23,
2017.

On April 18, 2017, Appellant appealed the Orders, dated March 22, 2017 and March 23,

2017.



Orl May 15,2017, Respondent WALMART moved for Summary Judgment on th¢ causes
of action for assault and battery. The court granted summary judgment in favor of Respondent
WALMART on July 14, 2017. |

Appellant moved to reconsider the J uly ‘1 4, 2017 Order, wrlich the Court denied in-its .
Order, dated October 3, 2017. Appellant appealed the aforementioned Ordérs, which were the
subject matter of Appellate Case No. 2017-002160. | |

’ Appellanrmoved to consolidate the two Apprellare Cases on October 24, 2017, which thisi
anorable Court granted in its Order, dated November 29, 2017.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

When reviewing a grant of summary judgment, an appellate court applies the

‘same standard used by the trial court. Lanham v. Blue Cross and Blue Shield of S.C., Inc., 349

S.C. 356, 361, 563 S.E.2d 331, 333 (2002); David v. McLeod Regional Medical Center, 367 S.C.
242.247.626 SE.2d 12 (2006). Summary judgment is appropriate when there is no genuine

issue as to any material fact, and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

| Ruie 56 (c ), SCRCP. The appellate court must view the facts in the light most favorable to the

non-moving party below. Id_ 1f the slightest doubt e>;ists as to whether there are genuine issues
o‘f rrlaterial fact or whether the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of ‘law, the
summary judgment must be reversed.

Furthermore, determining the proper interpretation of a statute is a question of law, and

this Court reviews questions of law de novo. Catawba Indian Tribe v. State, 372 S.C. 519; 524,

642 S.E.2d 751, 753 (2007).



ARGUMENTS

; ' L.
THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT
IN FAVOR OF RESPONDENTS.

A. " No Probable or Reasonable Cause Exists for the Warrantless Arrest and the Illegal
Search and Seizure of Appellant

Respondents claimed that Appellant’s causes of action are barred by the existence of
probable cause.

South Carolina passed the Merchant’s Defense Statute or S.C. Code Ann. §16-13-140,
which became the standard of probable cause in shoplifting cases. In fact, Respondent
WALMART relied on the same provision as its defense. The provision states:

“In any action brought by reason of having been delayed by a merchant or

merchant’s employee or agent on or near the premises of a mercantile _

establishment for the purpose of investigation concerning the ownership of any

‘merchandise, it shall be a defense to such if: (1) the person was delayed in a

reasonable manner for a reasonable time to permit such inve: stigation, and (2)

reasonable cause exzsled 10 believe that the person delayed had committed the

crime of shoplifiing. ™

Reasonable cause in §16-13-140 is akin or in fact the same as probable cause.
Probable cause for a warrantless arrest exists when the circumstances within the arresting

officer's knowledg,e are sufﬁcrent to lead a reasonable person to belleve that a crime had been

committed by the person being arrested Jones v. City of Columbia, 301 S. C. 62, 65, 389

S.E.2d.662, 663 (1990) In determining probable cause, only those facts and crrcumstances that
were or should have been known to the Respondent at the time the Appellant was stopped should
~ be consrdered.v

Probable cause involves the existence of such facts or circumstances as would ercite the

belief of a reasonable mind-—acting on facts known to him—that the person arrested had



committed the crime of shoplifting. To establish probable cause, we must look at Respondent

WALMART’s existing policy in addressing shoplifting incidents.

Ronnee Miller, an Assistant Manager at Respondent WALMART on the day of the

alleged incident, discussed the company policy on shoplifting. In her deposition, Ronnee

explained that Respondent WALMART has an ex1st1ng procedure to abide by in cases of

shoplifting 1n01dent namely: (1) selectlon (2) concealment, (3) continued possession, and (4) last

pomt of entry.

“ Q ’

oA

Can you tell me what the procedure for WALMART is when you have
an alleged shoplifiing? _ _

As an AP associate, you have to have the--the four elements. Once
you get all four elements and they pass the last point of sale, which is
them going out the door, you then approach and take them into the
office. From there you collect the items, obtain the receipt. And then

: _from there, if police need to be contacted, we you get them involved.  If

NIORORORQROE 1O

NN

SRl

not, we take our znjormalzon key it in the system and go from there.
All right. Well, I'm not going to lie to you a bit. 1didn't get a single
thing of that, so sze could go slowly fo; me. :

Okay.

The four elemerits, what are the /our elements?
You have to get selection.

Selection meaning? '

Them picking up the items.

Yes, ma'am.

- Concealing it.

And that means that they've  concealed it in sonie way?

Uh-huh. _

And what does "concealed" mean to you?

To me would be placing it in your pocket, placing it in your purse,
pulting the item on. If it's a hat, taking the tag off and placing the item
on head, on your head. That would be concealing it.

And the third?

Continued possession.

And that would mean what specifically?

As you're watching them, they -- like if they're sh()ppmg now, dafter
they already got the item, do /hcy still have it on them; that you're just
verifying that they didn't take it out of their purse or put the item down.
So it's maintaining 11 in the area that it's been concealed in?

Uh-huh.

Is that "yes"?



Do you let them get out of the bulldmg or is ltjuslpast the register?

Past the register.

Take me from that, that point, please. '
- From that point, we then do the approach, ldentlfy ourselves 1l ask

them to come. lnto the -- the substallon "

A Yes, sir.
O: Thank you. And the fourth element?
A: Last point of sale
Q:  Allright. And that means what?
A: Walking out the front door, passing all registers.
- Q:  Soonce that occurs --
A: Uh-huh.
Q. --is that when you approach the individual?
A: Yes, sir.
O Andpassmg all registers, meaning, the last opportunity to pay for it?

A: Yes, sir.
Q-

A
0
A:

(Ronnee Miller Dep., 11-13, January 18, 2017).

Miller testified she cannot recall having seen the Appellant select or pick’dut an item,
conceal, nor carry it out Of the store nor pass the'check our counter Q'r. éa’sﬁi'_er. (Miller Dep., 38:

' 22—25; 39:1-6, Id.). It should be notéd that Miller had the wealth of camera angleé, and the

related video recordings, at her disposal. Miller testified that theré were fifty (50) cameras
within the store. o |

Respondent Porter did not personally observe Appellant éppréach any mer’chandise,
select nor conceal the same. I.n fact, he testified in a prior criminal case that he accosted
Appellant upon the prodding of a WALMART employee, who allegedly_ saw her carrying
personél items suspiciously; (Russell Porter Trial Tr., 19:.1 1-25; 20:1-8). Respondent Porter did
not personally witness Appellant intentionally attempt to leave the building without paying for
the items, as in fact he arrested her while she was in line to pay for the items she had choseﬁ. The
folloWing responses s by Respondent i’orter are revealing: |

tQr Well, where did you—wzhére did you see her take some_thing?



0

0
A:

I didn’t see her take anything. The things were in her bag. I don’t have to see
her take anything?

You—you go grab people and start going through their purse with —

No. As soon as  walked up 1o her [ looked into her bag, and the items were in her
bag. '
And you knew that was stolen because why?

- Because she immediately tried to—tried to leave. She tried to turn and walk away
Jfrom me.” (Emphasis supplied)

(Porter Trlal Testlmony 14 1 -9, September 17, 2014)

“0:

A:

NSNS

Q

The bottom line is you did not see her put anything in lhal purse, dzdyou? :

I don’t have to see her put it in. That’s not—that’s not a part of the statute 1
have to see her put it in. She needs (ph) possesston of it. I don’t have to see her -
put it in. -

She hadn’t gotten through the line, had she?

No, she had not.

‘Okay. So, you’re essentially assumihg that she wasn’t going to pay for

something?
By her actions she did not.intend to pay, and she didn ’t have the money. She
didn’t have the $74.16 in her purse when we checked her.

 And that’s why she took—she took stuff from her cart and pui it to the side—*“

(Emphasis supplied)

“(Porter Trial Testimony. 15: 17-25; 16:1-6).

“0:

n

CLorgs OROAONOA

So we don’t—we don’t have any video?

No. :

We don’t have the alleged witnesses?

No witnesses.

Well, people—

(Inaudible) witness?

--that actually saw what happened. Right? That’s how you learned of it. Right?
Saw?

I mean you don’t just go up to people and attack lhem and say, You stole this.

Right?

No, huh-uh.

Okay. Well, there were people that gave you that hint. Right?
Right.

Where are they?

L don’t know.

Do you have anybody here from WALMART to say that you can 't — the video was
not-good, you couldn’t see it, or you just didn’t get it? Right?

There was no video; sir. I went in the LP office, asked the LP guy. Is this area
covered? No this area is not covered. There’s nothing— (Emphasis supplied).



(Porter ];rial Testimony, 19:11-25; 20: 1-8).

The unlawful arrest and subsequent deteﬁtion by Appellant was based on a sus?icion of
an él'l.eg'ed eyewitness, a. Kelyn Eber, who was conveniently 'missing..o'r was no longer in its(
employ. Respondgnt WALMART had a chance to substantiate its shoplifting charges by
submitting the surveillance video on t_he day of tﬁé incident, but it has consistently'denied its

existence. 'T'hisvis in contradiction to Ronnee’s testimony that the storézhas"ﬁ:ﬁy’(SO) cameras

_inside. (Ronnee Millet Depo'.,' 16: 7-12). Ms. Langham allegedly took the items-out of her

purse in the checkout line. The thought that there was no surveillance near the register is &

patently absurd.

Respondent WALMART had an obligation to preserve the video since they had arrested

the Appellant. It did not present a single video because it would have negated the claim of

,shoplﬁifting;_ More importantly, the video of the register would have shown Respondent Porter’s

~ violent manhandling of Appellant.

. Respondent Portet, as 2 member of Respondent Spartanburg Police Department, is -
covered by S.C. Code Ann. § 17-13-30. This provision empowers an officer to arrest a person

without a warrant for any crime committed in his view, which the courts have extended to

“include crimes freshly committed. State v. Martin, 268 S E.2d 105 (1980). State v. Clark, 287

S.E.2d 143 (1981). In this case, Respondent Porter admittedly did not persoflally witness
Appellant select, conceal, cont'inuously possess or pass the last point of entry. As such, Porter
illegally arrested Appeliant.

“The party seeking summary judgment has the burden of clearly establishing the absence

of a genuine issue of material fact.” McNair v. Rainsford, 330 S.C. 332, 342, 499 S.E.2d 488,

493 (Ct. App. 1998) (citing Baughman v. Am. Tel. & Tel. Co., 306 S.C. 101, 410 S.E.2d 537



(1991); Standard Fire Ins. Co. v. Marine C'ontrdcting & Towing Co., 301 S.C. 418,392 S.E2d

460 (1990)). “In determining whether any triable issues of fact exist, the evidence and all

inferénces which can be reasbnably drawn therefrom must be viewed in the light most favorable

to the nonmovmg party Lanham v. Blue Cross & Blue Shield of South Carolina, Inc., 349 S. C '

356, 361-62, 563 S E. 2d 33 l, 333 (2002) (citing Summer v. Carpenter 328 S.C. 36 492 S E. 2d

55 (1997)); Strother v. Lexington County Recreation Commission, 332 S.C. 54,61, 504 S.E.2d

1 17 121 (1998)

In determmmg probab e cause, only those facts and circumstances that wére or should
have beén known to the Respondent at the time the Appellant was stopped should be considered.
The deterfnination of whether probable cause exiéts is ordinarily a jury question; hoWever, it may

be decided as a-matter of law, when the evidence yields but one conclusion. Law v. S.C.

Department of Corrections, 368 S.C. at 441, 629 S.E.2d at 651(2006), as cited in Lynch v. Toys

‘R Us-Delaware, 375 S.C. 604 (2007). In this case, the evidence yields further investigation,
especially considering Resp’orideht Officer Russell’s félse statement.in the Ineidént Report,
claiming to have personally seen Appellant hide some items in her bag. This was belied by his
own words in his trial testimony'. In fact, a directed vebfdict would have been apropos given the
fact that Respondent Porter did not meet one element out of the four enumerated by Respondent
WALMART.

J urisprudenee has long established that even when there is no dispute as to evidentiary
facts, but only as to the conclusions or inferences to be drawn from them, summary judgment

should be denied. Carolina Alliance for Fair Employment v. South Carolina Departfnent of

Labor, Licensing and Regulation, et al., 337 S.C. 476,‘523 S.E.2d 795 (1999). Had this case



reached the jury, a different conclusion may have been reached as to the existence of probable
cause for Appellant’s unlawful arrest, assault and battery and subsequent illegal detention.

B. The Reasonableness of Manner by Which Appellant Was Delayed by Respondent
Porter and Respondent Walmart Is An Issue Of Material Fact.

Respondent WALMART‘alleged that it has “acted reasonably and in good faith in in the
exercise of their legal rights and at no time breached any duty. In essence, Respondent
WALMART raised the doctrine of Merchant’s D'efense.under S.C. Code Ann. § 16-13-140.

Under the Merchant’s Defense, while Respondent WALMART had the right to stop and
delay their customers, such should be done in a reasonable manner and within a reasonable time.
Reasonable manner and within reasonable time should be determined by company policies on
shoplifting.

It is.Appellant’s coriténtion that there is nothing reasonable in the manner by which |
Respondent Officer Porter, delayed and subsequently arrested Appellant, forcefully slammed her
on the ﬂoor; ‘and illegally searched her purse. |

Respondent Porter violated Respondent WALMART’s policy on shoplifting. Without
observing or witnessing Appellant select an item, conceal or continuously carry the same without

paying for it, and walk past the cashier or exit the store, Porter approached her from behind,

while she was queueing at the cashier, and arrested her. Respondent Porter had no reason to
-believe that Appellant had intent to conceal and carry the alleged stolen items since he did not

' personally see her hide or place any item in her purse. Neither did he have any reason to believe

that Appellant had no intention of paying for the merchandise since Appellant was still within
Respondent WALMART’s premises, and was in the line to pay, and has in fact paid, for the

items she had on her cart. (Porter, Trial Testimony, 8:2-25; Langham.Deposi-tion, 19-20; 21_:2%
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25). In short, Respondent Porter stopped the Appellant before she had a chance to pass the check
out counter or the cashier that would show intent to take the items without paying for them.

The manner by which Respondent Porter arrested, detained and subsequently searched
Appellant was unlawful and illegal. Respondent Porter applied excessive force by slamming
Appellant on the floor, which resulted in bruises and injuries on her person. Appellant was never
informed of her alleged violation uritil she ‘was inside the ofﬁce and was being searched for
other items. Nothmg was found on her person but Respondent Porter presented her with lrpstrck
powder and other personal items; that she allegedly shopllfted

F urthermore, there is a geniuine issue of material fact as to the appropriateness of
Respondent Porter’s action in arresting, detaining, and manhandling Appellant. In her deposition,
Ronnee stated that police ofﬁcers are hired by Respondent WALMART to provrde security.

“Q: - What procedures are law enforcement agents (0 Jollow when they're

looking for you?

Ms. Bagley: — Object to the form.

A: They—I mean, they—they normally do’ their /ob as a police officer and

- whatever that entails. And then they re —like I said, they re Just lhere for

security purposes and just crowd control when hired in.

Q. All right. And so correct me if I'm wrong, that the purpose of the law
enforcement agent is not to catch shoplifiers, it is to maintain calm within
the store?

Yes, sir.

- So to keep people from stabbmg each other for an Xbox?
~ Yes sir.”

EN R

(Ronnee Miller Dep., 21:23-25; 23:1-15).

The issue of the appropriateness of action and reasonableness of force employed by
Respondent Porter goes.into the interpretntion of the law, specrﬁcally S.C. Code Ann. § 16-13-
140. Whether Appellant was delayed in a reasonable manner and for a reasonable time to permit

investigation, under the circumstances of this case, was an issue for the jury; so also was the

11



question of whether there was reasonable cause to believe that Appellant committed the crime of

shoplifting. Mains v. K Mart Corp., 375 SE2d 311, (SC: Court of Appeals, 1988.

Summary judgment is not appropriate where further inquiry into the facts of the case is

desirable to clarify the application of the law. Carolina Alliance for Fair Emplowhent v. South

Caroling Dep't of Labor, Licensing and Regulation, et al., 337 S.C. 476, 523 S.E.2d 795.

Appellant asserts that the existence of probable cause and reasonable delay should have
been submitted to the jury.
: I1.
APPELLANT’S CAUSES OF ACTION ARE NOT BARRED
BY STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

A The Causes of Action For Violation Of §1983, Assault And Battery And Malicious
Prosecution Are Not Barred By Statute Of Limitations -

»On’Violation of §1983

Although §i983 provides a cause of action er violatvions of eonstitutional. and federal
: statutory rights, it does not describe the applicable statutes of limitations, nor dees it detail the
accrual and tolling roles When §1983 does not address 1mpertant litigation issues, the Supreme
Court has often looked to 42 U.S.C. §1988 which specifies that if federal law is “deﬁc1ent
state law will apply as long as it is “not inconsistent with the Constitution and the laws ofthe
United States.

Under §1988, a state’s statute of limitations relating to personal injury is applicable to

§1983 litigation. In various cases, the Supreme Court has held that §1983 'is best characterized

as a tort action for the recovery of damages, and therefore held that the appropriate statute of

limitations to be adopted is the state statute applicable to personal injury. Wilson v. Garcia. 471

U.S. 261 (1985), Ownes v Okure. 448U.S. 245 (1989). (Emphasis supplied).
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Under §15-3-535 in relation to §15-3-530 (5), any action for assault, battery, or any

injury to the person or rights of another, not arising on contract and not enumerated by law must

be initiated within three (3) years after the person knew or by exercises of reasonable diligence,
should have known that he had a cause of action.

Since the incident happened on December 24, 2013, Appellant had until December 24,
2016 to file her case. Appellant filed her Complaint on April 8, 2016 for violation of §1983 and
assault and battery against Respondents WALMART, Officer Porter, and City Police
Department. Appellant filed her case well within the time. The causes of action for violation of
§1983 must prevail.
On Malicious Prosecution

In Snider v. Seung Lee, 584 F.3d 193, 199 (4" Cir, 2009), the Court ruled that “A claim

founded on a Fourth Amendment seizure that incorporates elements of the analogous common
law tort of malicious prosecution” which requires at least “a wiro'ngful seizureland terminatioﬁ in
her favor of the proceedings following her seizure.” " The statute of limitations for such a claim
is three (3) years, but the date of acérual is not until tHe criminal proceedings end in the
Appellant’s favor.

Apﬁellant was acquitted frvom the pre?ious criminal case by Spartanburg Municipal Court
on September 17, 2014. This cause of action must survive.
On Assault and Battery

Appellant’s cause of action for assault and battery against Respondent Porter (Sixth
Cause of Action) was based on his individual capacity. Firstly, Respoﬁdent Porter was

performing an act outside the scope of his duty as a police officer. To be specific, he was
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performing his job as an employeé of Respondent WALMART as he was hired during his off
duty. |

SeAcondly', at all relevant times, Respondent WALMART had control and supervision
dver Res_pondent Porter’s actions during the _incideﬁt. Respondent Porter approached; stopped,

arrested and detained Appellant upon the instruction and/or instigation of Respondent

‘WALMART’s employees. (Porter Trial Testimony, 7:4-8; 19:23-25).

Respondent Porter was sued for his tortious conduct in his individual capacity.

- Respondent WALMART was being sued for tortious conduct, based on respondeat éupe‘rior.

Tﬁis being so, the applicable statute for this cause of action is SC Code Ann §15-3-530(5), which
allows three (3) years for thé Appellant to bring a personal injury action.
On the Applicability of the South Carolina Tort Claims Act

Appellant’s cause of action against Respondent'Porter was based on his individual
capacity. Respond'ent Portef was acting outside the scope of His official duty, perforrﬁiﬁg his
duties as Respondent WALMART’S employée. This took it out of the scope of the Torts Claims
Act.

Aésuming barguendo that he was performing acts within the scope of his official duty as a
police officer, his excessive use of force against the Appellant took his conduct outside of the
scope of the Act. |

II1.
RESPONDENT CITY OF SPARTANBURG POLICE DEPARTMENT IS NOT
ENTITLED TO QUALIFIED IMMUNITY

Respondent Police averred that Appellant failed to establish that it violated her rights.

Qualified immunity‘ is a doctrine that says that in order to sue an officer for a violation of a

Constitutional rights, one must show that not only did that officer committed a violation but that
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at that time the violation occurred, it has been “clearly established” that the officer’s actions were
unconstitutional.

Appellant asserted that Réspondent Police failed tp address the many complain;s for
~ excessive ﬁse of force against _Responderit Porter. It also failed in its duty-to tfain, supervise and
discipline Respondent Porter. it alscn)‘ failed to monitor its arrangement with _Respor’iden.tsv Porter, |

and WALMART, that resulted in gross violation of Appellant’s Constitutional righté. This
' policy of indifference by Respondent Police allowed Respondent Porter toiact in a manner that,
as iﬁ Appéllant’s case, Qiolates the individual’s Constitutional rights-.

Respondent Police knew or should have known of Respondent Porter’s aggressive
behavior fhrough the numerous complaints against him, but it has done nothing to invesﬁgate,
remedy or discipline him. Instead, it continued to hire and retain him deépite posing a danger_to
the public. |

Respondent Police knéw of should have known that thé arrangement between the other
Respondents, is on its ‘face, violative of the riglﬁ to duej process and liberty of the Appellant, in
particular, énd the public in general.

V.

RESPONDENTS ARE LIABLE FOR ASSAULT AND BATTERY, MALICIOUS
PROSECUTION AND VIOLATION OF 42. U.S.C. §1983

Assault and Battery

As to Respondent Porter

~ Appellant asserts that there was no probable cause supporting the arrest and detention of
herein Appellant, and as such, Respondent Porter was liable for assault and battery.
Appellant submits that Respondent Porter undeniably committed assault and battery upon

her person. Appellémt was cooperating with Respondent Porter when the latter approached
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and interrogated her. Without‘reas;,on, he grabbed Appellant’s arm, where she had an injectable
contraceptive, wi‘th suph force that she raised her arm in pain. Respondent Porter took this as a |
sign of resistance, and forcibly slammed her to the floor. Appellant did not exhibit any violent,
nor scandalous behavior prior to, or subsequent to, Respondent Porter manhandling her. .

~ Respondent had.n(‘) 're'asc.)nable.cause to delay Appellant as he did not see nor obsefve her

select, conceal, possess or take any item beyond the cashier and her register, without paying for

‘it. Appellant was within Respondent WALMART’s vicinity, and was in fact approaching the

cashier, as she made her way to the front of the line. Respondents did not present any video
surveillance, nor witness, to substantiate its c]aim‘of shoplifting.

Appellant was delayed in an unreasonable manner. When Respondent Porter fook hold
of her arm, he already had her in custody. He had no need to slam Appellant to the floor. There

is nothing reasonable in the manner which Respondent Officer Porter forcefully seized

'Appellam, who was significantly smaller and lighter than him, slammed her to the floor, and

illegally searched her purse: Respondent Officer Porter used such force that, resulted in bruises
and physical injuries to the Appellant. (Exhibits 2-3).
Respondent Porter’s arrest sans probaBle cause, subject him to liability for committing

assault and battery upon the person of Appellant.

As to Respondent WALMART .
©* Appellant submits that Respondent WALMART is liable for the tor_tioué conduct of its
employees under the doctrine of respondeat superior.

Appellant asserts that, at all times relevant to the incident, Respondent Porter was

“considered an employee of Respondent WALMART; he was performing acts in furtherance of

* Respondent WALMART s interest; and WALMART benefitted from his actions. Appellant n
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reiterates that at the time of the incident, it had control over Respondent Officer Porter.

Respondent WALMART assigned him to man a specific area and gave instructions of whom to

~approach and apprehend for Shopliftihg. Respondent WALMART allowed, and/or tolerated

Respondent Porter’s acts of manhandling and assaulting Appellant. It should be highlighted at

this point that none of Respondent WALMART’s employees prevented Respondent Porter from

. exereising excessive force against Appellant. And finally, Respondent WALMART hired and

continued to hire Respendent Porter during his off days. Thus, Respondent WALMART is
vicariously liable for the tortious acts committed by Respondent Officer Porter against herein
Appellarjt.

Malicious Prosecution

In order to recover in an action for mélicious prosecution, Appellant must show (1) the

institution or.continuation of original judicial proceeding, either civil or criminal; (2)-by, or at the

~instance of, the Respondent; (3) termination of such proceeding in the Appellant’s favor; (4)

malice In instituting such proceedings; (5) lack of probable cause; and (6) resulting i m]ury or

damage Parrot v. Plowden Motor Co., 246 S.C. 318, 321, 143 S.E.2d 607 608 (1965) Eaves v. |
Broad River Elec. Co—op., Inc., 277 S. C 475,477,289 S.E2d 414, 415 (1982) as cited in Law v.

S.C. Department of Corrections, 629 S.E.2d 651(2006),

Appellant submits that the elements of malicious prosecution are present. Respondents
WALMART and Police instituted the prior criminal action without any cause to believe that a
shoplifting had been committed. Its allegations against Appellant were unfounded and frivolous

and without probable cause to believe that the action filed will succeed. There was no probable

cause for shoplifting because Respondents WALMART and Porter failed to prove the elements

of selection, concealment, continued possession and last point of entry. That the criminal action
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was even more unfounded because Respondents completely failed to address or present evidence
regarding their claim of action. Respondent WALMART did not submit any surveillance video
of the.alleged incident, nor did it present its employees who allegedly witnessed the shoplifting.
Appellant believed that the prosecution of the previous criminal case was brOught for an
ulterior motive, for the purpose of attemptmg to Iegally harass Appellant and dlscredlt her shotlld
she bnng action for the tortious conduct perpetrated by Respondents WALMART and Porter. As
a result of this mahclous prosecution, Plaintiff was obhged to defend herself and expend money
and time in her defense.
| Finally, Appellant was acquitted bS/ the Spartanburg Municinal Court on Septentber 17,'
2004.
Violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983
| Appellant reiterates that her_eause of aiction for violation of §1 983 1s separate and distinct
from her cause of action for assault and battery, and unlawful arrest and detention baeed on
4 res‘potzdeat superior.
- In order to establish a §.1983 claim, Appellant mnst be able to demonstrate a'\tiolation er |
a right secured by the Constitution and. the laws of the Unite‘d Statee, and that the alleged |
deprivation was committed by a person 'acting under color of state law. West v. Atkins, 487 U.S.

42,48 (1988) and City of Monterey v. Del Monte Dunes at Monterey Ltd., 526 U.S. 687, 707

(1999) as cited in King Grant-Davis v Shane Fortune, et al., 2:15-cv-4211-MD-MGB.

As to Respondent WALMART

Respondent WALMART anchors its arguments of non-applicability of 42 U.S.C. § 1983
in the fact that Respondent WALMART is a private corporation, and as such, may not perform

acts under the color of state law. Appellant, however, relies on Monell (Monell vs. Department

18



of Social Services of City of New York, 436 U.S. 658, 691 (1 978)), the rationale of‘which has

been extended to private businesses. Iskander, at 128-29; Powell, supra at 506; Smith v.

Brookshire Bros., 519 _F.2d 93. 94 (5™ Cir. 1975) (per curiam) as cited in Rojas v. Alexandé‘r"s

Department Store, Inc., 924 F 2d 406 (1 990).

In a number of cases, the 'C'ourt hés ruled that if a privelte person is Jomtly engaged” with
a state ofﬁcral in an alleged violation, that person acts under the color of state law. _Dennis V. |
SM 449 U.S. 24, 27-28, 101 S.Ct. 183, 66 L.Ed.2d 185 (1980). In El Fundiv. Derocheli, 625

F. 2d 195 as cited in Murray v. WALMART, 874 F.2d 555, state actlon 1s present when private

security guards and police officers act in concert to deprive Appellant of his civil rights,
partiouiarly when a state statute authorizes a shopkeeper to detain suspected‘ shoplifters. Inthe
Murray case, the court has allowed a litigant to recover against WALMART under §1983.. The
court held that 'WALMART had aoted under color o.f state law. In-the cés'e at bar, numerous
facts pomt to the conclusron that Respondent WALMARF acted in concert wrth the local pollce.

Firstly, _Respondent WALMART hired Respondent Porter, a law enforcement ofﬁcer on
. his off days. Respondent Porter admitted that he was hired by Respondent WALMART for the
twelfth time on the day the 1nc1dent happened. (Porter Depo.; 1 1 15-18). Secondly, it is the
practice of Respondent WA{LMART to work with the police department in prosecuting
~ shoplifters. Respondent Porter and/or WALMART employees had telephoned the police after
the unlawful search of the Appellant’s purse and her wrongful arrest, and reduested the
assistance of other officers for all the detained shoplifters. The police responded by taking
Appellant in custody, without an independent investigation as to what transpired. |

Thirdfy, in the case of Cruz v. Donnelly, the Third Circuit Court of Appeals addressed the

specific question of when state action is present in detention for shoplifting. Cruz v. Donnelly
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727 F.2d (3d Cir. 1984).- Cruz héld that “commercial establishments and their employees will

| only be held liable under §1983 when: (1) the police have a pre-arranged plan with the store, and
(2) under the plan, the police will arrest anyone identified as a shoplifter by the store without
ind¢pehdently e\’/aluating the presence of probable cause.” Id.

In Réjas v. Alexander’s Department Store, Inc., the éourt held that a cofporatiori, acting
under color of state law, will be held liable under §1983 for its own Unconstitutioﬁal pol.ilcies'.'
Rojés, Id.- It further provides that the proper test is whether there isa policy, custom or action by
those who represent official policy that inflicts injury actionable under §1983. Appellant
believes that Re'spondént WALMART’ bolicy on shoplifting ahd its arrangement with
Respondent Police Department on the arrest, .seizure_, and detention of sU'spected shoplifters,
without an indépendent investigation by the local police, is a custom or tradition that violates the
Constitutionai rights of the Appellant. For this reason, Respondent WALMART is liable under
§1983. Respondent WALMART’s liabiljty under the doctriné of res‘pondeat superior is |
discussed in the succeeding section. |

As to Respondens Police Department

Under the Monell v. Department of Social Services, 426 U.S. 658 (1978), a municipal
- government can be held liable undef Section 192;3 if a plaintiff can demonstrate that a
deprivation of a federal right occurred as a result of the local government’s local officials whose
acts may fairly be said to be those of the municipality. Respondents insist that no municipality
can be held liable under §1983 on a respondeat supefior theory. Appellant submits that the
Complaint against Respondents City of Spartanburg Police Department is not based on
respondeat superior but an independeﬁt action based on Respondents Police Department’s failure

to properly train, supervise, and discipline Respondent Porter.
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In her Eight Cause of Action, Appellant alleged that through information and belief, she
came to know that Respondent Porter had history of complaints, including excessive use of
force. (Appellant Complaint, 12-13, April 8, 2016). Appellant, through her counsel, requested
information and details of said previous complaints. Respondent City of Spartanburg Police
Department failed to act on said complaints, as Respondent Porter continued to work for the
Respondent City of Spartanburg Police Department even after the shoplifting incident.

Appellant also asserted in the same cause of action that Respondents failed to train,
supervise,» and discipline Réspondent Porter. (Complaint, 13:75-76). Their failure to provide
remedial actions to the many complaints against Respondent Porter is tantamount to a policy of
indifference. This indifference resulted in the deprivation of the rights and liberty of Appellant.

In the case of City of Canton v. Harris, 489 U.S. 378, 390 (1989) as cited in Drayton v.

County of Charleston, Civil Action No. 2:14‘—cv—3l488-RMG-MGB (D.S.C. Jul.v 10, 2015), the
Court held that the failure to provide prépef training may fairly be said .to represent a policy for
which the city is reésponsible if it actually causes injury. The phyéical, emotional and mental
| injuries sustained by Plainiiff in the hands of Porter’s lagk prbper training has yet to be addressed
by Respondent City of Spartaﬁburg Police Department.

| Respondent City of Spartanburg Povlice Department’s‘ failuré to provide remedial action
in response to prior compléi_nts against Respondent Porter is tantamount to cvondoni'ng
Respondent Porter’s violation of Appellant’s ri ghté against unlawful arrest, unré_asonable search
and seizure, due process, right to liberty and right against excessive use of force. Appellant
asserts that Respondents’ inaction is an action, which émoﬁnts to a custom or practice of

deliberate indifference, and not just mere negligence.
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The jury should be given an opportunity to determine whether those off officials who
have tfle power to make _ofﬁcial policy, or in the alternative, the custom or practice. of inaction
perpetuated by Respondents, has caused Ap‘pellant’s deprivation of rights.

Furthermore, Appellant believed that Respondent Police had an érrangement with
~ Respondent WALMART, wherein the former will arrest anyone identified as a sh;)pli-fter by

latter, without evaluating the presence of probable cause, as what happened in this case.
Appellant insist that this set up between Respondentslpolice and WALMART has become a
custom that violates the Constitutional rights of the App'ellant. It must be noted here that
Respondent Porter continues to be in the employ of the‘ law enforcement agency. |
A reading oftheS. C. Code‘—Ann. provisions namely, § 23-24-10, §23-24-50 and §23-24-.
2Q ‘(Supp. 1978), shows that a law enforcement ofﬁcer may perform an off-duty, private work,
provided that “the work to be performed is within the officer’s jurisdiction and that the officer
bbtains pérmiésion for such wqu from the agency and gov_eming bodyv by which he is _
empl_oyed.” Op. S.C. Atty. Gen., 2014 (March' 17,2014). It further states that the officers
“moonlighting” shall retain full law enforcement authorjty. Ibid. |
This only proves that there is an arrangement, whether written or othérwise, between
’privat‘e, commercial establishments like Respénd¢nt'WALMART, employing off-duty officers,
and the law enforcemérﬁ agency. This is all the more highlighted by the fact that Respondént
Police d1d not conduct an independent investigation of the alleged shoplifting incident, and ju.st
toék Appellan_t in custody.
The afore-mentioned state statutes combined with the concerted actions of Respondents
' WALMART, its\employées, and the local police department, afford ample evidence of willful,

joint activity which supports a claim against Respondents under §1983.
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CONCLUSION

‘For the foregoing reasons, Appellant respectfully prays that the trial court’s Orders, dated

March 22,2017, March 23, 2017, July 14, 2017 and October 3, 2017, granting Respondents’

respective Motion for Summary Judgment should be reversed, and this cause be femanded for a

jury trial on the merits.

Anderson, South Carolina
December 28, 2017
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